




All the best,

 

Ruari

 

R(E)C Consulting
Promoting resilience and potential for people and the environment.

E. ruari@recimpacts.com 

T. +46 72 361 6919

 

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

 

On Friday, 17 October 2025 at 16:07, Darlow, Neil <neil.darlow@esso.ca> wrote:

Hi Ruari.  Apologies, but I’ve been out of the office, just returning today.  I’ll work on providing
responses to you by later today.

 

Thanks, Neil

 

Neil Darlow

Norman Wells Operations Closure Environmental Assessment Lead

Imperial Oil Limited

505 Quarry Park Blvd. SE, Calgary, Alberta T2C 5N1

neil.darlow@esso.ca

imperialoil.ca  |  Twitter  |  YouTube

 

From: Ruari <ruari@recimpacts.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 15, 2025 1:06 AM
To: Darlow, Neil <neil.darlow@esso.ca>
Cc: Eleonora Mazzoneschi <Eleonora.Mazzoneschi@gwichintribal.ca>; Fraser, Benjamin C
<benjamin.fraser@esso.ca>
Subject: Re: Norman Wells EA scoping - follow-up questions



 

                                         

Good morning, Neil and Benjamin

 

Following-up on this email from last week. Can you let me know when we can expect a response? 

 

Thanks in advance and hope this finds you both well.

 

All the best,

 

Ruari

 

R(E)C Consulting
Promoting resilience and potential for people and the environment.

E. ruari@recimpacts.com 

T. +46 72 361 6919

 

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

 

On Tuesday, 7 October 2025 at 12:43, Ruari <ruari@recimpacts.com> wrote:

Good morning, Neil 

Great to meet you and the Imperial team in Gwich’in territory late September. I hope you all
made it home safely and without much further ado following the Inuvik flight delay. I hope, like
me, you are starting to return to a normal routine and get caught up on your various files. 

I had a quick follow-up from the Tsiigehtchic and Inuvik scoping sessions. Specifically, I
wanted to confirm my understanding from three lines of questioning we shared.  

1. Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) delineations 
a. We spoke about ESA work that has occurred in the proven area and on the islands

(inclusive of the natural islands and the artificial ones). 
b. I asked if the delineations of the studies ended at the proven area or extended

beyond it.  
c. Paramount confirmed that the ESA works would continue to the full extent of the

delineated area of contamination.  



d. A follow-up question was asked if such studies had already taken place where
delineation extended beyond the proven area. 

e. Paramount confirmed that some delineation studies had continued beyond the
proven area. 

2. Rip rap armouring of the artificial islands 
a. We spoke about the armouring of the artificial islands and the occasional need to re-

armour following winter break-up.  
b. Paramount described the most recent armouring event, which included the addition

of approximately 100 m3 of rock.  
c. Using a rough estimate of 100 tonnes of rock that was washed away, I asked if

studies had been done to track where the rocks were being deposited downstream? 
d. Paramount responded that no, there had been no studies and the extent of distance

the rocks have washed away is not known.  
e. Paramount mentioned that the coast guard has added

navigational buoys in the Mackenzie River that are attributed
to the washed away rip rap.  

 

Imperial Response: The most
recent artificial island armouring
scope of work took place between
March-April 2023 focused on the
toes of two islands (Island 3 and
4). The repair plans were designed
by a third party consultant to
address integrity concerns that
were observed during the annual
inspections completed in August
2022.  High level details of the
scope are available on the SLWB
public registry, summarized in our
annual Flowline Integrity and
Break-up report (2023). Required
approvals and notifications were
also completed with the DFO and
CER prior to execution. Annual
inspections completed in recent
years post repairs, indicate no
movement of the placed armour
rock. Per Part F (2) of Imperial’s
Type A Water Licence (S13L1-007),
Imperial is required to “undertake
any necessary annual
maintenance required to preserve
the structural integrity of the
Artificial Islands”.



Occasionally Imperial completes
similar armouring scopes of work
to protect our cross-river flow line
corridors from future scouring by
placing rip rap armour along the
riverbed above the crossings. The
Coast Guard example mentioned
during the community scoping
session was related to armouring
of the flowline crossings between
Island’s 1 & 2 to the mainland in
March 2024. Due to low water
levels on the Mackenzie in 2024,
the armour rock presented a
potential navigational hazard for
local boats. Imperial worked with
the Coast Guard to flag the area in
their NAVWARN system.

Imperial is not aware of any navigational hazards created from lost armour rock
surrounding the Artificial Islands, nor have navigational buoys or warnings in
the Coast Guard’s NAVWARN system been placed.

 

3. Climate change updates and influence on closure and reclamation options
a. We spoke about potential environmental impacts on the project and how climate

change is likely to affect future transportation and remediation options.
b. I asked if the 2016 draft ICRP closure options were viable given rapidly changing

environmental conditions, and how they would be influenced by a potential
Mackenzie Valley Highway (MVH) - recognizing the GNWT is proposing to construct
the highway over a 20-year period. 

c. Paramount acknowledged that climate change realities will drive the available
closure options and that the draft 2016 ICRP will need to be updated to reflect
current knowledge and climate trends.

 

Can you please confirm that the above points are accurate reflections of our conversation?
Please do correct me where you have a different understanding or elaborate to provide
further context to what was discussed.

I am, of course, interested in learning more about the ESA studies, the extent of rip rap that
has been replaced over the years, and what contingencies are under consideration with and
without the MVH, or based on the GNWT's accelerated alternative construction timeline. Any
additional info or insights are welcome.  

Thanks again for your time, and for Imperial’s presence in the Gwich’in Settlement Area –
most appreciated. 



All the best, 

Ruari 

 

 

R(E)C Consulting
Promoting resilience and potential for people and the environment.

E. ruari@recimpacts.com 

T. +46 72 361 6919

 

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

 

 




